

TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

12 OCTOBER 2022

PRESENT

The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Chris Boyes), in the Chair.

D.C. O'Sullivan (Deputy Mayor)	B. Hartley	K. Procter
D. Acton	W. Hassan	T. Ross
S. Adshead	S. J. Haughey	J. Slater
J. Bennett	J. Holden	S. Taylor
J. E. Brophy	F. Hornby	S. Thomas
B. Brotherton	C. Hynes	R. Thompson
D. Bunting	D. Jerrome	M.J. Welton
D. Butt	W. Jones	A. Western
G. Carter	J. Leicester	D. Western
K.G. Carter	J. Lloyd	M.P. Whetton
G. Coggins	M. Minnis	G. Whitham
R. Duncan	P. Myers	A.J. Williams
S. G. Ennis	A. New	B.G. Winstanley
W. Frass	J.D. Newgrosh	J.A. Wright
S.J. Gilbert	T. O'Brien	Mrs. P. Young
J. Harding	E. Patel	S. Zhi

In attendance:

Chief Executive	S. Todd
Director of Legal and Governance	D. Sykes
Governance Manager	J. Addison
Senior Governance Officer	I. Cockill

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A. Akinola, J.M. Axford, Miss L. Blackburn, Dr. S. Carr, D.N. Chalkin, L. Dagnall, M. Freeman, D. Jarman, S. Maitland, M. Mirza, D. Morgan, S. Procter, L. Walsh and A.M. Whyte.

30. HER MAJESTY QUEEN ELIZABETH II

As this was the first Council meeting since the sad passing of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II, the Council stood for a minute's silence to formally pay its respects and honour her late Majesty.

31. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 27 July 2022, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to noting that with regard to Minute 27 "Save Our Rivers Motion", the amendment submitted and listed with the agenda Summons was moved, seconded, voted upon and declared lost.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

32. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Health Scrutiny Announcement – Altrincham Minor Injuries Unit

Councillor Whetton, Chair of Health Scrutiny Committee announced that at its last two meetings the Committee had investigated the ongoing closed status of the Altrincham minor injuries unit and had been led to believe that a phased re-opening of the unit would commence in January 2023, however, the plan had been overtaken by events elsewhere and now stood to be delayed somewhat further whilst more review work was undertaken. The Health Scrutiny Committee was very concerned about the continued closure of the minor injuries unit and believed that the message it sends out to the community creates concerns as to the ongoing wider use of Altrincham General Hospital site. The Committee had called for the NHS to re-open the unit as speedily as possible and to give clear unambiguous signals that the rest of the hospitals uses were there to stay.

33. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

The Mayor reported that 5 questions had been received under Procedure Rule 10.2.

- (a) Councillor Zhi asked the following question, the first of two questions for which he had given notice:

“Can the Executive Member for Environmental Services please provide me with an update on the current position with recruitment and temporary backfilling of roles for the bin crews?”

In response, Councillor Adshead, the Executive Member reported that the waste service required between 106 and 111 staff depending on seasonal requirements, levels of holidays and other absences. The service currently employed 99 full-time equivalent staff and in addition had 13 regular temporary staff supplied by a recruitment agency. The service, therefore, had 7 full-time vacancies and intended to move suitable staff from temporary to permanent contracts 12 weeks employment.

As a supplementary question Councillor Zhi asked what additional actions were planned to get services to a level that his constituents and all Trafford residents expect and deserve. Councillor Adshead advised that performance penalties for the Council’s delivery partner Amey were being implemented for any poor service. An issue had been identified in respect of Monday waste collections and an action plan had been formulated with a report on implementation expected to the Executive in the near future.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

- (b) Councillor Zhi asked the following question, the second of two questions for which he had given notice:

“The government has delivered over £37 billion in a package of support, including £1,200 for the lowest-income families to support families in the UK with the cost of living this year.

Can the Executive Member for Finance and Governance outline what further plans the Council has to support Trafford residents with the cost of living?”

In response, Councillor Ross, the Executive Member confirmed that a written response had been provided to Councillor Zhi which is set out as follows:

“Thank you for your question. Councillors have been voicing concern about the cost of living crisis for many months and the Executive have been working closely with officers on Trafford Council’s response.

Since the summer we have been collaborating with housing providers, our community hubs, our local Citizens Advice Service and other partners to co-ordinate a joined-up response at a neighbourhood level.

We are opening up community living rooms- providing a place that is warm and an alternative to heating your own home. The projected impact of this initiative will be approximately 13,000 hours of access to warm, safe, welcoming living rooms. This initiative will also provide a social space and access to advice and information regarding local support and services. This initiative will run from October 2022 until March 2023.

We have been working with our partners to explore extra capacity for welfare rights advice- helping people navigate social security and providing help with maximising income. This partnership work has included our in-house Welfare Rights Service, equivalent services provided by our local housing associations and our local Citizens Advice Service.

We are launching a cost of living awareness campaign- including a leaflet and money advice referral tool available via the Trafford Council website. We want to ensure access to help is as simple as possible.

In the meantime, a range of financial support connected to the cost of living crisis includes the Household Support Fund split between £1m to cover free school meals, £350k towards Trafford Assist, £60k to support our Community Hubs and a £70k in-year extension to the CAB and our Welfare Rights Service.

Partnership work is a key part of our response and we will continue to engage with local housing providers, the VCSFE and other local partners in response to the cost of living crisis.”

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

Acknowledging the written response Councillor Zhi proceeded to his supplementary question and asked whether the proposed Council Tax increase, set out in the Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 – 2024/25, was fair to residents when many were already struggling with their bills. Councillor Ross noted that due to austerity over the past 12 years the situation for local authorities had become chronic when it came to funding and that the proposal would bring in much needed revenue to promote frontline services. Ideally a government would provide more grant funding and reverse the spending cuts, whereas, in reality the country faced another bout of austerity. The Council did not take lightly what was done with Council Tax increases and the Executive Member encouraged Councillor Zhi to lobby his own Ministers for more local government funding to enable the Council to provide the frontline services people held dear.

(c) Councillor Frass asked the following question for which he had given notice:

“In February this year, Trafford Council provided a reply to a Freedom of Information Request about the number of Hikvision CCTV units in Trafford. Page 13 of the report attached to that reply lists more than 90 Hikvision units in use across the Borough.

Hikvision was blacklisted by the US Government in 2019 over concerns about their role in human rights violations, targeting Uighurs in Xinjiang Province of China. The House of Commons has since said the human rights violation in Xinjiang amount to genocide.

Hikvision have Chinese Communist Party government tenders to establish facial recognition cameras at the entrances of mosques and to install surveillance systems in re-education camps where Uighurs are detained.

As a result, a report from the Foreign Affairs Select Committee last year, recommended the Government forbids Hikvision equipment from operating in the United Kingdom.

Can the Executive tell us whether any Hikvision units were installed in Trafford after this report was issued and what plans are in place to remove any Council-owned units of Hikvision equipment?”

Councillor Wright, Executive Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods confirmed that no cameras had been installed after that particular date and advised that a substantial review of the Council's CCTV policy had been undertaken and a revised policy will be published shortly. As part of that review a substantial audit of the Council's CCTV systems was being undertaken. The Executive Member also confirmed that the Council did not possess any form of biometric recognition software which was the issue that caused particular concern around the cameras. There would be a considerable capital expense of removing and replacing the existing cameras without significant benefit at the present and as an illustration the cost of a new camera of similar specification was circa £600, plus the cost of removal, installation, reconnection hire of cherry pickers and road closures for which there was currently no funding.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

As a supplementary question Councillor Frass asked whether the Executive Member might agree with him that the report by the Foreign Affairs Select Committee recommending that they be banned in the UK provided evidence that the Council could demonstrate misconduct, therefore, the Council could amend the procurement policy to remove Hikvision from the list. Councillor Wright advised that the Council was contracted until 2024 at which time it would look to tender in accordance with the procurement laws at that time, however, he provided an assurance that going forward, the Council would not be purchasing such equipment.

- (d) Councillor Coggins asked the following question for which she had given notice:

“Can the meeting have an update on the council's plans for a Citizens' Assembly on the climate crisis?”

Councillor Williams, Executive Member for Climate Change and Transport Strategy advised that the concept of holding a citizens' assembly on the subject of climate change was developed at a time when public awareness of the topic was still evolving and risked being overtaken by other concerns.

Since then, the extreme weather events, notably the record temperatures experienced that summer and the appalling floods recently observed in Pakistan had placed the climate crisis once again at the centre of the public agenda. Similarly, the growing cost of living crisis and unprecedented rise in energy costs, sparked by domestic and global events had made energy efficiency and consumption a daily topic of conversation. We all think differently about where our energy comes from and how we use it.

With that in mind, it was clear that time had moved on and in the context of ongoing austerity and demands on Council finances it was right to review the intention to hold a citizens' assembly. The Council's finite resources need to be directed to activities that could most effectively contribute towards tackling the climate crisis. For those reasons, the Executive had determined not to proceed with a citizens' assembly at the present time but to devote more effort into tangible measures towards combating the climate crisis.

As a supplementary question, Councillor Coggins enquired about plans to update the website to indicate that the assembly will not now be happening and to announce alternative ways to continue to encourage the public to engage on the topic. Councillor Williams indicated that he had requested that the website be amended to provide more up to date material. In terms of engaging the public, the Executive Member agreed that it was a key aspect of the work and hoped to continue pursuing that through the multi-agency/partnership Climate Commission. Councillor Williams acknowledged that Councillor Coggins was an active member of the Commission and welcomed her continued participation through that process.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

- (e) Councillor Miss Blackburn had given notice of the following question and in her absence, it was put to the meeting by the Mayor:

“Will the Executive Member let me know how much Section 106 monies has been used over the last 2 years to provide disabled appropriate equipment in our Borough’s parks?”

Councillor Adshead, the Executive Member for Environmental Services confirmed that Section 106 monies were currently being reviewed to identify where play equipment was identified as part of the agreement. This particular funding stream often had specific requirements and was linked to specific areas set out in the Section 106 agreement but also some agreements allowed flexibility in the use of the funds. These particular funds had not been utilised for any play equipment during the previous 2 years, however, replacement of play equipment had been identified as an area that needed funding, hence the Council’s capital programme was being used for that purpose.

When carrying out play equipment refurbishment, the Council’s own Green Space Capital Programme for play areas had been allocated for this type of works and had been focused on replacing older equipment with more inclusive play equipment.

In 2021-22, the Green Space Capital Programme allocation was £127,000 to play areas and in 2022-23 the allocation was £126,000. From the allocations three multi-play units at Moor Nook Park, Newton Park and Kelsall street play areas were in the process of being replaced with inclusive play units with an estimated cost of £70,000. The Council was also installing other inclusive equipment, including communication boards and signage to assist users with other disabilities such as autism.

34. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES

RESOLVED: That the Council notes that Councillor Newgrosh replaced Councillor Brophy as a reserve Member of Planning and Development Management Committee, with effect from 30 August 2022.

35. PETITION - ROAD SAFETY AND TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT, SOUTH DOWNS ROAD

Petitioner, Bridget Green introduced the following petition which had received 517 signatures from addresses within the Borough.

“We petition the Council to create a 20mph zone around South Downs Road, from Langham Road and including Grange and Marlborough Roads. We also request visible signage, traffic calming measures and wider pathways.

This is a key route to Bowdon Church School, the Bollin School and Altrincham Grammar School for Boys. Few people walk or cycle along the road as the

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

pavement is too narrow for pushchairs and speeding traffic means it is perceived by parents as too busy to cycle safely.

A 20mph limit would create greater safety for our children and benefit the whole community. It would alleviate parking issues, congestion and standing traffic as more pupils will be able to get to school by foot or bike.

Please reduce the speed limit, introduce appropriate signage warning drivers and implement traffic calming measures. This would create a more accessible link between Bowdon and Hale.”

In presenting the petition, the petitioner emphasised that the major safety concerns were the narrowness of the pavement which placed pedestrians in danger of oncoming traffic and the frequency in which vehicles mounted the pavement. Also, if people were to be encouraged to use more active forms of travel as a means of alleviating the congestion which was intensifying problems in the area, more safe routes were needed to do that. Appreciating that funding was extremely tight, the petitioner appealed for some creative ways to make it happen.

Councillor Adshead, Executive Member for Environmental Services and Councillors Whetton, Brophy and Leicester responded to the petition on behalf of the political parties and made the following points:

Councillor Adshead: Recognised that safety around schools was an issue across the Borough and the Council was currently trialling “school streets” a safety scheme as well as implementing a range of road safety schemes and initiatives. The Road Safety Team would now investigate the petition’s request and consider the various options. The Council continued to explore options to secure more funding and would press Transport for Greater Manchester for the expansion of 20mph zones.

Councillor Whetton: Feared that changes to the street scene infrastructure may place some of the petition’s objectives too far from reach given the realistic of cost. Despite the 20mph concept having detractors, it was certainly a visible alert to drivers to slow down and focus their minds to the circumstances in the immediate area. With qualified support he awaited the reflections of the Leader of the Council.

Councillor Brophy: The petition clearly showed the strength of feeling amongst residents for a 20mph zone and was another example of the feeling across the Borough. Spoke in favour of 20mph speed limit areas and the petitions objectives.

Councillor Leicester: Petition highlighted the public concern for road safety in general and specifically the issues of South Downs Road. Believed South Downs Road could be a major walking route between the south of Hale and the primary and secondary schools in Bowdon but for people being too frightened to use it. It had been an issue that people had tried to address before but one outcome, a school crossing patrol, did not address speeding vehicles, 20mph restrictions had been deemed too difficult and costly and a commitment for not suitable for HGV signs did not materialise. Also advised that the road was

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

declassified which should affect traffic as it would no longer be a recommended route for satellite navigations systems but some mapping services had not updated and this was to be investigated by officers. Time had moved on and there were now new initiatives like the Greater Manchester Bee Network and Trafford's own design plan which set objectives around sustainable movements and connected neighbourhoods. In summary, supported the petition and asked that road safety be reviewed given the public appetite to improve the situation and the principle that school routes should be prioritised and as a Ward Councillor would welcome the opportunity to meet with Highway officers on site.

Following the discussion the Leader of the Council, Councillor Andrew Western thanked Bridget for bringing the petition and expressed that he did not feel it was an unreasonable request. However, he stated that the Council had limited funding for the implementation of 20mph zones so it would be assessed alongside of all the other requests received and a decision would be taken on the basis of need as determined by engineering specialists. At that point it was too early to say definitively either way weather or not the Council would be able to implement the request. The Leader recognised that it was a location that was problematic for a number of different reasons but also acknowledged the points made by Councillor Whetton not only about the financial constraints the Council found itself in but the particular geographical constraints of the location that could add significantly to the costs and stretch what was a limited budget.

The Leader thanked everyone that had signed the petition and confirmed that the request would be assessed by the Council's engineers and set against all other requests and if the budget allowed it would be taken forward.

36. PUBLICATION OF MEMBERS' ADDRESSES ON THE DECLARATION OF INTERESTS REGISTER

The Council received a report of the Director of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer presenting Standards Committee's recommendation from its meeting held on 22 September 2022, in respect of the publication of members' addresses on the public register of Members' Interests.

RESOLVED:

- (1) That the reports, investigations and consultation undertaken by the Standards Committee, be noted.
- (2) That the Council adopts a blanket policy whereby all Members' addresses are treated as sensitive interests and are not made publicly available.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

37. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 2021/22 REPORT

The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and the Director of Finance and Systems submitted a joint report outlining the main treasury management activities undertaken during 2021/22. The report had been presented to Accounts and Audit Committee on 20 July 2022 and the Executive on 25 July 2022.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

38. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE GREEN PARTY GROUP - VISION ZERO

It was moved and seconded that:

“This Council notes that 55 people were killed or seriously injured on its roads in 2019 and that this is 25% higher than the number in 2011 (44). In 2020, despite far lower overall traffic due to the pandemic, there were 7 fatalities, the third highest year in the decade 2011-2020. This Council believes that more needs to be done to reduce the number of casualties on its roads.

This Council notes that "Vision Zero" has been successful in many cities, regions and states worldwide. Vision Zero achieves change by combining strong enforcement of traffic law and better roadway engineering, with campaigns to encourage careful life-saving behaviour and to end dangerous anti-social behaviour by road users. This Council notes that Vision Zero not only improves road safety but can also help to tackle:

- high levels of inactivity and poor public health;
- poor air quality;
- rising carbon emissions from road transport;
- congestion; and
- nuisance noise

Each of these great road issues is estimated to cost Trafford millions of pounds every year. Reported road casualties in Trafford alone caused societal costs (medical and ambulance, lost output and human cost) of £23.2 million in 2019, according to the Department for Transport's statistics, based on police records.

Almost all other forms of transport now have extremely low, or zero levels of casualties associated with their use. This Council believes that, in relation to road transport, the only justifiable target should be that in the longer term no one is killed or seriously injured on the roads that it manages.

This Council notes that Vision Zero requires substantial change over the longer term so that our streets offer a fairer balance between people and motor vehicles. These changes include less traffic, slower speeds, safe street design, safe space for cycling, safe junctions and crossings, safe vehicles and safe behaviour by road users backed up by robust enforcement.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

This Council calls on the administration to take a bold approach to the safety of those travelling on its roads and especially those who are the most vulnerable – people on foot, people cycling and people on motorcycles. We need:

- an ambitious target to cut road deaths and serious injuries to zero by 2040 – with an interim target of reducing our numbers by 50% by 2030, compared with our average of 46 from 2011-2020.
- a clear Vision Zero action plan (using changes listed above) that drives progress on safety;
- effort to secure the necessary funding from sources such as grants, section 106 funding and revenue raising measures such as taking up the newly available power to enforce against moving traffic offences and issue penalty charge notices for contraventions;
- a recognition that this can't be done by Trafford Council alone. The council will work with other bodies and authorities, such as the Greater Manchester Police, Transport for Greater Manchester, Highways England and Active Travel England, and ask them to do more to help reach Trafford's Vision Zero goals.
- political will to make difficult decisions, and a leadership that is unafraid to communicate its Vision Zero goal and seeks to engage our communities in achieving it.

Vision Zero principles will change public perception about road danger, so that death and injury is no longer an inevitable part of our lives as we move around, but something that can be avoided if a serious and sustained effort is made to tackle the causes of the problem.”

It was moved and seconded as an amendment that:

“This Council notes that 55 people were killed or seriously injured on its roads in 2019 and that this is 25% higher than the number in 2011 (44). In 2020, despite far lower overall traffic due to the pandemic, there were 7 fatalities, the third highest year in the decade 2011-2020. This Council believes that more needs to be done to reduce the number of casualties on its roads.

This Council notes that "Vision Zero" has been successful in many cities, regions and states worldwide. Vision Zero achieves change by combining strong enforcement of traffic law and better roadway engineering, with campaigns to encourage careful life-saving behaviour and to end dangerous anti-social behaviour by road users. This Council notes that Vision Zero not only improves road safety but can also help to tackle:

- high levels of inactivity and poor public health;
- poor air quality;
- rising carbon emissions from road transport;
- congestion; and
- nuisance noise

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

~~Each of these great road issues is estimated to cost Trafford millions of pounds every year. Reported road casualties in Trafford alone caused societal costs (medical and ambulance, lost output and human cost) of £23.2 million in 2019, according to the Department for Transport's statistics, based on police records.~~

Almost all other forms of transport now have extremely low, or zero levels of casualties associated with their use. This Council believes that, in relation to road transport, the only justifiable target should be that in the longer term no one is killed or seriously injured on the roads that it manages.

This Council notes that Vision Zero requires substantial change over the longer term so that our streets offer a fairer balance between people and motor vehicles. These changes include less traffic, slower speeds, safe street design, safe space for cycling, safe junctions and crossings, safe vehicles and safe behaviour by road users backed up by robust enforcement.

This Council ~~calls on the administration~~ **seeks** to take a bold approach to the safety of those travelling on its roads and especially those who are the most vulnerable – people on foot, people cycling and people on motorcycles. We ~~need~~ **recognise that work to promote Vision Zero is being actively considered by GM directors of public health and therefore resolve that:**

- **The Council should investigate the feasibility of introducing a Vision Zero action plan that drive progress on road safety and that includes an ambitious target to cut road deaths and serious injuries to zero by 2040 – with an interim target of reducing our numbers by 50% by 2030, compared with our average of 46 from 2011-2020.**
- ~~— an ambitious target to cut road deaths and serious injuries to zero by 2040 – with an interim target of reducing our numbers by 50% by 2030, compared with our average of 46 from 2011-2020.~~
- ~~— a clear Vision Zero action plan (using changes listed above) that drives progress on safety;~~
- **effort to secure the necessary funding is explored** from sources such as grants, **and** section 106 funding **and noting that** revenue raising measures such as taking up the newly available power to enforce against moving traffic offences and issue penalty charge notices for contraventions **are already in motion;**
- ~~a recognition that~~ this can't be done by Trafford Council alone. The council will work with other bodies and authorities, such as the Greater Manchester Police, Transport for Greater Manchester, Highways England and Active Travel England, and ask them to do more to help reach Trafford's Vision Zero goals.
- ~~political will to make difficult decisions, and a leadership that is unafraid to communicate its Vision Zero goal and seeks to engage our communities in achieving it.~~

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

Vision Zero principles will change public perception about road danger, so that death and injury is no longer an inevitable part of our lives as we move around, but something that can be avoided if a serious and sustained effort is made to tackle the causes of the problem.”

Following a debate on the matter, the amendment was put to the vote and declared carried. The Council continued to debate the substantive Motion before it was put to the vote and declared carried.

RESOLVED: That this Council notes that 55 people were killed or seriously injured on its roads in 2019 and that this is 25% higher than the number in 2011 (44). In 2020, despite far lower overall traffic due to the pandemic, there were 7 fatalities, the third highest year in the decade 2011-2020. This Council believes that more needs to be done to reduce the number of casualties on its roads.

This Council notes that "Vision Zero" has been successful in many cities, regions and states worldwide. Vision Zero achieves change by combining strong enforcement of traffic law and better roadway engineering, with campaigns to encourage careful life-saving behaviour and to end dangerous anti-social behaviour by road users. This Council notes that Vision Zero not only improves road safety but can also help to tackle:

- high levels of inactivity and poor public health;
- poor air quality;
- rising carbon emissions from road transport;
- congestion; and
- nuisance noise

Almost all other forms of transport now have extremely low, or zero levels of casualties associated with their use. This Council believes that, in relation to road transport, the only justifiable target should be that in the longer term no one is killed or seriously injured on the roads that it manages.

This Council notes that Vision Zero requires substantial change over the longer term so that our streets offer a fairer balance between people and motor vehicles. These changes include less traffic, slower speeds, safe street design, safe space for cycling, safe junctions and crossings, safe vehicles and safe behaviour by road users backed up by robust enforcement.

This Council seeks to take a bold approach to the safety of those travelling on its roads and especially those who are the most vulnerable – people on foot, people cycling and people on motorcycles. We recognise that work to promote Vision Zero is being actively considered by GM directors of public health and therefore resolve that:

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

- the Council should investigate the feasibility of introducing a Vision Zero action plan that drive progress on road safety and that includes an ambitious target to cut road deaths and serious injuries to zero by 2040 – with an interim target of reducing our numbers by 50% by 2030, compared with our average of 46 from 2011-2020.
- necessary funding is explored from sources such as grants and section 106 funding noting that revenue raising measures such as taking up the newly available power to enforce against moving traffic offences and issue penalty charge notices for contraventions are already in motion;
- this can't be done by Trafford Council alone. The council will work with other bodies and authorities, such as the Greater Manchester Police, Transport for Greater Manchester, Highways England and Active Travel England, and ask them to do more to help reach Trafford's Vision Zero goals.

Vision Zero principles will change public perception about road danger, so that death and injury is no longer an inevitable part of our lives as we move around, but something that can be avoided if a serious and sustained effort is made to tackle the causes of the problem.

39. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - THE ENERGY AND COST OF LIVING CRISES

It was moved and seconded that:

“We have an energy crisis of huge magnitude hanging over our heads and the assistance offered by the government so far is of little help to those already in fuel poverty. The help is not targeted at those who most need it. Businesses and public sector organisations also continue to face uncertainty.

Meantime, energy providers such as BP and Shell continue to make massive profits, and the government is launching a new oil and gas licensing round and lifting the moratorium on UK shale gas production, when there is clear scientific evidence that we must keep fossil fuels in the ground to avert climate breakdown.

Our energy security has been under threat for some time, and not only because of the importance of supporting Ukraine. Climate change, extreme weather conditions and a lack of investment in infrastructure are also impacting this.

It does not need to be like this. Instead of a piece meal approach, a long-term energy plan should have been started years ago.

The government could have reduced our dependency on fossil fuels and the vagaries of the energy market by investing in renewables and green technology, so honouring its commitment to reducing carbon emissions and addressing the climate emergency.

Meeting of the Council 12 October 2022

The government could have increased its long duration energy storage capabilities (LDES), thus obviating the wastage of energy from renewables, and could have decided not to close gas storage facilities.

The government could have initiated an immediate accessible insulation programme to ensure that everyone is warm and to reduce energy consumption.

This energy crisis has been one of the main drivers behind our cost of living crisis, a crisis exacerbated in recent weeks by the reckless behaviour demonstrated by the Government in the form of its 'mini-budget', with the threat of further cuts to services. Whilst the richest 5% would have benefited from unfunded tax cuts, many more households face higher mortgage rates and seeing their pensions put at risk as the markets act with alarm in response to the government's irresponsible fiscal policy. A combination of the energy crisis and recent fiscal measures have put many households across Trafford in a precarious position.

The Council - while recognising that these are not measures one of the richest countries in the world should have to consider - resolves to:

- Continue to find ways to support our residents and local businesses in accessing the welfare benefits, grants and payments due to them.
- Provide free accessible friendly Warm Hubs where our residents can stay as long as they like and have access to hot drinks.
- Provide information for residents and local businesses on creative ways to save energy.
- Support local community and co-operative initiatives to deliver investment in renewables, such as the Trafford for Solar Community Benefit Society solar offer.

The Council resolves to write to the Government to demand:

- An urgent targeted increased assistance package for those on prepayment meters, low incomes, disabilities.
- The reintroduction of the £20 a week uplift in Universal Credit, extended to all welfare benefits.
- Targeted assistance for small businesses.
- Targeted assistance for schools, hospitals and other public buildings.
- A rapid increased investment in renewables and energy storage (LDES).
- The introduction of an accessible, urgent insulation programme."

Having given notice of an amendment, Councillor Ennis pronounced acceptance of a suggested alteration and it was moved and seconded as an amendment that:

"We have an energy crisis of huge magnitude hanging over our heads and the assistance offered by the government so far is of little help to those already in fuel poverty. The help is not targeted at those who most need it. Businesses and public sector organisations also continue to face uncertainty.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

Meantime, energy providers such as BP and Shell continue to make massive profits, and the government is launching a new oil and gas licensing round and lifting the moratorium on UK shale gas production, when there is clear scientific evidence that we must keep fossil fuels in the ground to avert climate breakdown.

Our energy security has been under threat for some time, and not only because of the importance of supporting Ukraine. Climate change, extreme weather conditions and a lack of investment in infrastructure are also impacting this.

It does not need to be like this. Instead of a piece meal approach, a long-term energy plan should have been started years ago.

The government could have reduced our dependency on fossil fuels and the vagaries of the energy market by investing in renewables and green technology, so honouring its commitment to reducing carbon emissions and addressing the climate emergency.

The government could have increased its long duration energy storage capabilities (LDES), thus obviating the wastage of energy from renewables, and could have decided not to close gas storage facilities.

The government could have initiated an immediate accessible insulation programme to ensure that everyone is warm and to reduce energy consumption.

This energy crisis has been one of the main drivers behind our cost of living crisis, a crisis exacerbated in recent weeks by the reckless behaviour demonstrated by the Government in the form of its 'mini-budget', with the threat of further cuts to services. Whilst the richest 5% would have benefited from unfunded tax cuts, many more households face higher mortgage rates and seeing their pensions put at risk as the markets act with alarm in response to the government's irresponsible fiscal policy. A combination of the energy crisis and recent fiscal measures have put many households across Trafford in a precarious position.

Trafford Council has a track record of offering meaningful winter support to vulnerable residents. Last year's winter care package programme, which grant funding allowed the Council to deliver across Borough, made a positive difference to so many of our most vulnerable residents.

Whilst competition for these type of programmes is fierce, this Council believes that a similar scheme is needed again this winter as even more people are being pushed into Fuel Poverty by the Conservatives' Cost of Living crisis.

The Council - while recognising that these are not measures one of the richest countries in the world should have to consider - **resolves to pledges to press ahead with the administration's plans to:**

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

- Continue to find ways to support our residents and local businesses in accessing the welfare benefits, grants and payments due to them.
- Provide free accessible friendly Warm Hubs where our residents can stay as long as they like and have access to hot drinks.
- Provide information for residents and local businesses on creative ways to save energy.
- Support local community and co-operative initiatives to deliver investment in renewables, such as the Trafford for Solar Community Benefit Society solar offer.
- **Develop a Winter Care Package programme for vulnerable residents across Trafford – exploring every possible avenue for funding.**

The Council resolves to write to the Government to demand:

- An urgent targeted increased assistance package for those on prepayment meters, low incomes, disabilities.
- The reintroduction of the £20 a week uplift in Universal Credit, extended to all welfare benefits.
- Targeted assistance for small businesses.
- Targeted assistance for schools, hospitals and other public buildings.
- A rapid increased investment in renewables and energy storage (LDES).
- The introduction of an accessible, urgent insulation programme.”

Following a debate on the matter, the amendment was put to the vote and declared carried. The Council continued to debate the substantive Motion before it was put to the vote and declared carried.

RESOLVED: That we have an energy crisis of huge magnitude hanging over our heads and the assistance offered by the government so far is of little help to those already in fuel poverty. The help is not targeted at those who most need it. Businesses and public sector organisations also continue to face uncertainty.

Meantime, energy providers such as BP and Shell continue to make massive profits, and the government is launching a new oil and gas licensing round and lifting the moratorium on UK shale gas production, when there is clear scientific evidence that we must keep fossil fuels in the ground to avert climate breakdown.

Our energy security has been under threat for some time, and not only because of the importance of supporting Ukraine. Climate change, extreme weather conditions and a lack of investment in infrastructure are also impacting this.

It does not need to be like this. Instead of a piece meal approach, a long-term energy plan should have been started years ago.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

The government could have reduced our dependency on fossil fuels and the vagaries of the energy market by investing in renewables and green technology, so honouring its commitment to reducing carbon emissions and addressing the climate emergency.

The government could have increased its long duration energy storage capabilities (LDES), thus obviating the wastage of energy from renewables, and could have decided not to close gas storage facilities.

The government could have initiated an immediate accessible insulation programme to ensure that everyone is warm and to reduce energy consumption.

This energy crisis has been one of the main drivers behind our cost of living crisis, a crisis exacerbated in recent weeks by the reckless behaviour demonstrated by the Government in the form of its 'mini-budget', with the threat of further cuts to services. Whilst the richest 5% would have benefited from unfunded tax cuts, many more households face higher mortgage rates and seeing their pensions put at risk as the markets act with alarm in response to the government's irresponsible fiscal policy. A combination of the energy crisis and recent fiscal measures have put many households across Trafford in a precarious position.

Trafford Council has a track record of offering meaningful winter support to vulnerable residents. Last year's winter care package programme, which grant funding allowed the Council to deliver across Borough, made a positive difference to so many of our most vulnerable residents.

Whilst competition for these type of programmes is fierce, this Council believes that a similar scheme is needed again this winter as even more people are being pushed into Fuel Poverty by the Conservatives' Cost of Living crisis.

The Council - while recognising that these are not measures one of the richest countries in the world should have to consider – pledges to press ahead with the administration's plans to:

- Continue to find ways to support our residents and local businesses in accessing the welfare benefits, grants and payments due to them.
- Provide free accessible friendly Warm Hubs where our residents can stay as long as they like and have access to hot drinks.
- Provide information for residents and local businesses on creative ways to save energy.
- Support local community and co-operative initiatives to deliver investment in renewables, such as the Trafford for Solar Community Benefit Society solar offer.
- Develop a Winter Care Package programme for vulnerable residents across Trafford – exploring every possible avenue for funding.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

The Council resolves to write to the Government to demand:

- An urgent targeted increased assistance package for those on prepayment meters, low incomes, disabilities.
- The reintroduction of the £20 a week uplift in Universal Credit, extended to all welfare benefits.
- Targeted assistance for small businesses.
- Targeted assistance for schools, hospitals and other public buildings.
- A rapid increased investment in renewables and energy storage (LDES).
- The introduction of an accessible, urgent insulation programme.

40. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - ASBESTOS

It was moved and seconded that:

“This motion asks the Ministers for Health and Environment to create an Asbestos Register of Public Buildings containing Asbestos and provide financial support in removing Asbestos from both public buildings and workplaces to eradicate Mesothelioma and other asbestos related diseases.

Asbestos use has been banned from use in buildings since 1999, but there is little action in removing the substance from buildings built pre-1999, many thousands of workplaces, public buildings and education facilities.

1. These older buildings have varying amounts of asbestos and any form of disturbance can cause strands to become airborne, potentially being inhaled and causing disease.
2. Asbestos has been used in Water Heaters, Air Conditioning, Ducting, Boilers, Paint, Ceilings, Drywalls and even carpet underlay.
3. This is an invisible killer and those affected receive diagnosis at the end of the 30 plus year incubation period, and way past any treatment other than palliative care. The concerns around the use of Asbestos were first raised in 1898 by HM Chief Inspector of Factories, and 97 years later Blue and Brown Asbestos imports were banned, followed 14 years later in 1999. Yet in 2019 there were 5000 deaths from Asbestos related diseases of which 2340 were from Mesothelioma.
4. The HSE recognises that workers within the building trade, demolition, facilities management and Fire Fighters are most at risk and some of these workers could be exposed, unknowingly, up to 100 times per year.

This Council resolves that the Chief Executive Officer of the Council writes to the above ministers to highlight the need of a register and asking them to develop a plan to facilitate removal of Asbestos from buildings to protect the workforce and provide financial support to remove this dangerous substance and allow safe working spaces for all.”

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

Following speeches in support of the matter, the Motion was declared carried with the unanimous consent of the Council.

RESOLVED: That this motion asks the Ministers for Health and Environment to create an Asbestos Register of Public Buildings containing Asbestos and provide financial support in removing Asbestos from both public buildings and workplaces to eradicate Mesothelioma and other asbestos related diseases.

Asbestos use has been banned from use in buildings since 1999, but there is little action in removing the substance from buildings built pre-1999, many thousands of workplaces, public buildings and education facilities.

1. These older buildings have varying amounts of asbestos and any form of disturbance can cause strands to become airborne, potentially being inhaled and causing disease.
2. Asbestos has been used in Water Heaters, Air Conditioning, Ducting, Boilers, Paint, Ceilings, Drywalls and even carpet underlay.
3. This is an invisible killer and those affected receive diagnosis at the end of the 30 plus year incubation period, and way past any treatment other than palliative care. The concerns around the use of Asbestos were first raised in 1898 by HM Chief Inspector of Factories, and 97 years later Blue and Brown Asbestos imports were banned, followed 14 years later in 1999. Yet in 2019 there were 5000 deaths from Asbestos related diseases of which 2340 were from Mesothelioma.
4. The HSE recognises that workers within the building trade, demolition, facilities management and Fire Fighters are most at risk and some of these workers could be exposed, unknowingly, up to 100 times per year.

This Council resolves that the Chief Executive Officer of the Council writes to the above ministers to highlight the need of a register and asking them to develop a plan to facilitate removal of Asbestos from buildings to protect the workforce and provide financial support to remove this dangerous substance and allow safe working spaces for all.

41. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - FRACKING

It was moved and seconded that:

“Trafford Council voted in November 2018 to reject Fracking in this borough.

Fracking was suspended in 2019 because of concerns about unpredictability of earth tremors as witnessed in Lancashire.

Nothing has changed since then except the Conservatives have changed their leader and our prime minister. That Prime Minister now thinks that Fracking is the answer to the energy crisis by creating home produced gas and it will help economic growth.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

A Cuadrilla representative has said in a Guardian exclusive on 21 September 2022 that Fracking in the UK is difficult because its geology is not suitable, further putting into question its viability.

The Government have signed up to crucial international commitments on net zero; Fracking potentially undermines these.

The wrong decisions on energy have already been made that mean that over 60% of our energy requirements now rely on gas. The UK should be taking the opportunity to reduce reliance on gas as we did with coal. Gas should stay in the ground to support our net zero commitments.

Fracking is an industry that has failed in the UK but it keeps getting brought back by Conservative governments despite the mounting evidence.

Despite the Fracking fantasies of this government and their potential financial incentives to local communities to accept Fracking. We call on this Council, its councillors and the boroughs' MPs to reaffirm their rejection of Fracking in Trafford.

We further call on fellow neighbouring councils to reject Fracking too in Greater Manchester, Cheshire and Lancashire.”

It was moved and seconded as an amendment that:

“Trafford Council voted in November 2018 to reject ~~F~~fracking in this borough.

Fracking was suspended in 2019 because of concerns about unpredictability of earth tremors as witnessed in Lancashire **and the potential harm it would bring to local communities and the local environment.**

Nothing has changed since then except ~~the Conservatives~~ **we now** have ~~changed their leader and our prime minister.~~ **That a Prime Minister now who** thinks that ~~F~~fracking is ~~the~~ **an** answer to **improving** the **UK's** energy ~~crisis~~ **security** by creating home produced gas and ~~that~~ it will ~~help~~ **boost** economic growth.

A ~~The founder of~~ Cuadrilla representative **Resources** has said in a Guardian exclusive on 21 September 2022 that ~~F~~fracking in the UK is difficult because its geology ~~means it is not suitable~~ **harder and more expensive to extract gas in this manner and the population density of the UK is such that commercially viable wells are limited**, further putting into question its viability.

The Government have signed up to crucial international commitments on net zero; ~~F~~fracking potentially undermines these.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

The ~~wrong decisions on energy have already been made that mean that~~ **UK's commitment to reduce emissions rightly led to a reduction in the use of coal, but that reduction has led to an** ~~over 60% of our energy requirements now rely~~ **reliance on natural** gas. The UK should be taking the opportunity to reduce **this** reliance on **natural** gas as we did with coal. Gas should stay in the ground to support our net zero commitments.

Fracking is an industry that has failed in the UK but it keeps ~~getting brought back by Conservative governments~~ **being suggested as a silver bullet**, despite the mounting evidence **it will not be commercially viable or socially acceptable in this country.**

Despite the ~~Fracking fantasies of this government~~ **fervour of certain national politicians and think tanks** and their potential financial incentives to local communities to accept ~~Fracking~~, we call on this Council, its ~~Councillors~~ and the boroughs' MPs to reaffirm their rejection of ~~Fracking~~ in Trafford.

We further call on fellow neighbouring councils to reject ~~Fracking~~ too in Greater Manchester, Cheshire and Lancashire."

Following a debate on the matter, the amendment was put to the vote and declared carried. The Council continued to debate the substantive Motion before it was put to the vote and declared carried unanimously.

(Note: During the debate on the substantive Motion, the time being 9:24 p.m., the Mayor indicated that speeches on this matter would now be limited to a maximum of one minute per speaker.)

RESOLVED: That Trafford Council voted in November 2018 to reject fracking in this borough.

Fracking was suspended in 2019 because of concerns about unpredictability of earth tremors as witnessed in Lancashire and the potential harm it would bring to local communities and the local environment.

Nothing has changed since then except we now have a Prime Minister who thinks that fracking is an answer to improving the UK's energy security by creating home produced gas and that it will boost economic growth.

The founder of Cuadrilla Resources has said in a Guardian exclusive on 21 September 2022 that fracking in the UK is difficult because its geology means it is harder and more expensive to extract gas in this manner and the population density of the UK is such that commercially viable wells are limited, further putting into question its viability.

The Government have signed up to crucial international commitments on net zero; fracking potentially undermines these.

**Meeting of the Council
12 October 2022**

The UK's commitment to reduce emissions rightly led to a reduction in the use of coal, but that reduction has led to an over reliance on natural gas. The UK should be taking the opportunity to reduce this reliance on natural gas as we did with coal. Gas should stay in the ground to support our net zero commitments.

Fracking is an industry that has failed in the UK but it keeps being suggested as a silver bullet, despite the mounting evidence it will not be commercially viable or socially acceptable in this country.

Despite the fracking fervour of certain national politicians and think tanks and their potential financial incentives to local communities to accept fracking, we call on this Council, its Councillors and the boroughs' MPs to reaffirm the rejection of fracking in Trafford.

We further call on fellow neighbouring councils to reject fracking too in Greater Manchester, Cheshire and Lancashire.

The meeting commenced at 7.00 p.m. and finished at 9.22 p.m.